
  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Agenda 

Thursday, December 03, 2020 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

2. Attendance 

3. Rules of Procedures 

Minutes 
4. Approval of Minutes - November 5, 2020 

Requests 
5. Request by Glenn Hulett for a side yard setback variance at 169 N. Steel Bridge Road. 

Presently zoned R-2. [Map 110B, Parcel 153, District 3].  

6. Request by Ronald Peterson for a rear yard setback variance at 145 Northshore Drive. 

Presently zoned R-2. [Map 056B, Parcel 097, District 4].  

7. Request by C. Roy Embry for conditional use at 621 New Phoenix Road. Presently zoned 

C-1. [Map 075, Parcel 050, District 2]. * 

8. Request by Willie David Copelan to rezone 5.00 acres from AG-2 to C-2 at 931 Pea Ridge 

Road. [Map 092, Part of Parcel 017001001, District 2]. * 

9. Request by Zeke Long, agent for Tyler Land Holdings, LLC to rezone 2.76 acres from C-

1 to C-2 on Greensboro Road. [Map 103A, Part of Parcel 062, District 3]. * 

 

New Business 
Adjournment 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commissioners agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on December 15, 2020 at 6:30 

P.M., in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, GA  31024. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event 

the number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members 

of the public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-152 of 

the Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established 

in O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 

706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 
1



File Attachments for Item:

4. Approval of Minutes - November 5, 2020

2



 

Draft Minutes 

November 5, 2020 

 PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Minutes 

 

The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday, 

November 05, 2020, at 6:30 P.M. in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam 

Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 
 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman James Marshall, Jr. called the meeting to order 

 

2. Attendance 

Mr. Ben Schmitt called the roll 

 

PRESENT:  

Chairman James Marshall, Jr. 

Member Maurice Hill, Jr. 

Member Martha Farley 

Member John Mitchell (not eligible for voting due to training requirements) 

 

ABSENT: 

Vice-Chairman Tim Pierson 

 

STAFF: 

Lisa Jackson 

Courtney Andrews 

Ben Schmitt 
 

3. Rules of Procedures 

Ms. Courtney Andrews read the Rules of Procedures. 

 

Minutes 

4. Approval of Minutes- October 1, 2020 

Motion to approve the October 1, 2020 minutes made by Member Farley, Seconded by 

Member Hill 
Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Member Hill, Member Farley  

 

Requests 

 
5. Request by Time & Ramona Driscoll for a side yard setback variance at 105 Southshore 

Road. Presently zoned R-2. [Map 053C, Parcel 111, District 4]. This item has been 

removed.  
 

 

3



 

Draft Minutes 

November 5, 2020 

6. Request by Dale Barnes for a side yard setback variance at 143 Spurgeon Dr. Presently 

zoned R-1. [Map 086B, Parcel 077, District 4]. Mr. Barnes represented this request. He 

stated that they would like to add an additional bay to his two-car garage. Due to the slant of 

his property line, his addition will be 13 feet from the property line in the rear. So, he is 

asking for a 7-foot side yard setback variance. No one spoke in opposition to the request. 

 

Staff recommendation is approval of a 7-foot side yard setback variance, being 13 feet 

from the rear right-side property line when facing the lake at 143 Spurgeon Dr. [Map 

086B, Parcel 077]. 

 

Motion to approve the request by Dale Barnes for a 7-foot side yard setback variance, being 

13 feet from the rear right-side property line when facing the lake at 143 Squrgeon Dr. [Map 

086B, Parcel 007] made by Member Hill, Seconded by Member Farley 

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Member Hill, Member Farley  

 

 

7. Request by Brian Evans for a side yard setback variance at 178 Spurgeon Drive SE. 

Presently zoned R-1. [Map 86C, Parcel 127, District 4]. Mr. Evans represented this 

request. He stated that he is seeking for a side yard variance to build a larger site build 

home. Member Hill asked if the unit would remain its current location because it might 

affect construction. Mr. Evans responded no. No one spoke in opposition to the request. 

 

Staff recommendation is approval of a 10-foot side yard setback variance, being 10 feet 

from the left and right-side property lines at 178 Spurgeon Drive [Map 086B, Parcel 

127]. 

 

Motion to approve the request by Brian Evens for a 10-foot side yard setback variance, 

being 10 feet from the left and right-side property lines at 178 Spurgeon Drive [Map 086B, 

Parcel 127] made by Member Hill, seconded by Member Farley 

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Member Hill, Member Farley 

 

 

8. Request by Alexander Johnson for a rear yard setback variance at 148 Dogwood Drive. 

Presently zoned R-1 [Map 112C, Parcel 090, District 4]. Mr. Johnson represented this 

request. He stated that he wants to remove the current house on his property and build a new 

house. He added that the problem is the lot is long and narrow, and if they pushed the house 

back to the 100-foot setbacks, they would have problems with incorporating a sceptic 

system that would work. He stated that they have site plans for their property, which places 

the home on the property in a way that allows for a sceptic system that would work. The site 

plan would require a 40-foot variance. No one spoke in opposition to the request. 

 

Staff recommendation is for approval of a 40-foot rear yard setback variance, being 60 

feet from the nearest point to the lake at 148 Dogwood Drive [Map 112C, Parcel 090]. 

 

Motion to approve the request by Alexander Johnson for a 40-foot rear yard setback 

variance, being 60 feet from the nearest point to the lake at 148 Dogwood Drive [Map 

112C, Parcel 090] made by Member Hill, seconded by Member Farley 

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Member Hill, Member Farley 

 

4



 

Draft Minutes 

November 5, 2020 

 

9. Request by Smith Built Homes, for a rear yard setback variance at 147 Collis Marina Road. 

Presently zoned RM-2. [Map 104B, Parcel 012, District 3]. Attorney Jay Dale represented 

this request. He stated that he is seeking a rear yard variance of 35 feet and a side yard 

variance of 10 feet. The reason for this request is to construct a new single-family house on 

the property. He added that the property is L shaped and it would be very difficult to build 

on without a variance. 

 

Ms. Darlene Wright spoke in opposition to this request. 
 

Chairman Marshall asked Ms. Jackson if she would like to comment? Ms. Jackson stated 

that staff looked at what Mr. Smith presented. The recommendation from staff helps with 

the concerns of Ms. Wright. She added that the way the house is positioned, the footprint of 

the home causes it to be slanted slightly. Ms. Jackson stated that that was the reason staff 

was specific about the corners. Mr. Dale agreed that the home could not be perfectly 

centered on the lot. 

 

Although the applicant is requesting a 10-foot side yard setback variance being 10 feet 

from the left and right side property line, staff recommendation is for approval of a 35-

foot rear yard setback variance, being 65 feet from the nearest point to the lake and a 

10-foot side yard setback variance, being 10 feet from the front left corner and rear 

right corner and a 5-foot side yard setback variance being 15 feet from the rear left 

corner and front right corner at 147 Collis Marina Road [Map 104B, Parcel 012] with 

the following conditions: 

1.) Primary structure must be a site build single-family home. 

   

Motion to approve the request by Smith Built Homes for a 35-foot rear yard setback 

variance, being 65 feet from the nearest point to the lake and a 10-foot side yard setback 

variance, being 10 feet from the front left corner and rear right corner and a 5-foot side yard 

setback variance being 15 feet from the rear left corner and front right corner at 147 Collis 

Marina Road [Map 104B, Parcel 012] with the following conditions: 

1.) Primary structure must be a site build single-family home. 

 Made by Member Farley, seconded by Chairman Marshall 

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Member Farley 

Abstaining: Member Hill 

 

The following items 10-12 were heard as one before the board. 
 

10. Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson for conditional use on 

Pea Ridge Road. Presently zoned C-2. [Map 090, Parcel 032, District 2]. * 

 

11. Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson for conditional use on 

Pea Ridge Road. Presently zoned AG-1. [Map 090, Parcel 033001, District 2]. * 

 

 

12. Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson for conditional use on 

Pea Ridge Road. Presently zoned AG-1. [Map 090, Parcel 027001]. * Mr. Ryan Peters 

represented this request. He stated that he is an environmental engineer with SolAmerica 

Energy, a solar development company based out of Atlanta, Georgia. He added that the three 

5



 

Draft Minutes 

November 5, 2020 

items are a combination of three parcels, one is zoned C-2, and the other two are AG-1. All 

the parcels are owned by Mr. David Erickson. SolAmerica is working with Mr. Erickson to 

lease 25 ½ acres of the combined 115 acres to develop a solar farm. The farm itself, 

meaning the solar panel array will sit on 16 acres of the 25 ½. The rest of the area will 

consist of a stormwater management pond, access roads, and perimeter buffers. One 

transformer will be on site along with some inverters to convert the power from direct to 

alternating current. The site should produce 2.8 megawatts of electricity, which is enough to 

provide power to 570 homes. Mr. Peters stated that they are tying into Tri-County’s existing 

three-phase line on Pea Ridge Road. The property is adjacent to Georgia Power’s 

transmission line easement. The project will be 1,000 feet from Pea Ridge Road, and the 

nearest dwelling is over 660 feet to the north. The vegetation outside the proposed area will 

remain. He added that land disturbance will only be on the proposed areas. As well as our 

excess road which will be a 30-foot-wide easement. No one spoke in opposition of this 

request. 

 

Member Hill asked if they are using adjustable panels that alternat to follow the sun? Mr. 

Peters stated that the panels are a fixed-tilt system and will be stationary. Member Hill 

stated that he asked because if it tilts with the sun, you could blind some drivers on the road, 

depending on where it is placed.  

 

 Staff recommendation is for approval of a conditional use for a solar farm located on Pea 

Ridge Road [Map 090, Parcel 032], [Map 090, Parcel 033001], and [Map 090, Parcel 

027001] with the following conditions: 

1. The development shall substantially comply with the submitted plans in support of the 

conditional use application. 

2. The uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to those that conform with 

solar energy production and any other use or accessory use allowed within C-2. 

3. Subject to Section 66-157 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, this conditional 

use permit shall be issued for a period of two years and will be reviewed for compliance. 

 

  

Motion to approve the request by SolAmerica, LLC, agent for David Erickson, for a 

conditional use for a solar farm located on Pea Ridge Road [Map 090, Parcel 032], [Map 090, 

Parcel 033001], and [Map 090, Parcel 027001] with the following conditions: 

1. The development shall substantially comply with the submitted plans in support of the 

conditional use application. 

2. The uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to those that conform with 

solar energy production and any other use or accessory use allowed within C-2. 

3. Subject to Section 66-157 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, this conditional 

use permit shall be issued for a period of two years and will be reviewed for compliance. 

 

 Made by Member Hill and seconded by Member Farley 

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Member Hill, Member Farley 

 

 

13. Request by Joshua Daniel, agent for Carolyn Walton, to rezone 13.89 acres from AG-1 to 

R-1 on Loch Way. [Map 095A, Part of Parcel 011, District 2]. Mr. Russel Wall 

represented this request for Carolyn Walton. He stated that they are seeking to rezone 

approximately 13.891 acres from AG-1 to R-1, on the northeast corner of Highway 144 and 

6



 

Draft Minutes 

November 5, 2020 

Loch Way. The property was zoned as R-1 but rezoned to AG-1 as a cost-saving measure 

during the Great Recession. The property is surrounded by residential properties known as 

Lock Haven subdivision. It is consistent with the character of the area. Mr. Wall Stated that 

he believes the neighbors are on board. No one spoke in opposition of this request.  

 

Chairman Marshall asked if the rezoning was specifically for a third of the original AG-1 

piece, and the remainder will remain AG-1. Mr. Wald responded yes.  

 

Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 13.891 acres on Loch Way [Map 095A, 

Part of Parcel 011] from AG-1 to R-1 with the following conditions: 1.) This rezoning 

shall be conditional upon the resurveying and recordation of the plat, as stated in 

Section 66-165 (e)(3) of Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 

Motion to approve the request by Joshua Daniel, agent for Carolyn Walton, to rezone 

13.891 acres on Loch Way [Map 095A, Part of Parcel 011] from AG-1 to R-1 with the 

following conditions: 1.) This rezoning shall be conditional upon the resurveying and 

recordation of the plat, as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of Putnam County Code of 

Ordinances made by Member Farley and seconded by Member Hill 

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Member Hill, Member Farley 

 

 New Business 

The Board of Directors are having a meeting next morning (November 6th, 2020) in 

reference to the GAZA conference; it will more than likely be moved to next summer. 

Mr. Mitchell’s training session is still being worked out with the University of Georgia; the 

current pandemic is affecting the timetables. 

 

Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:10 P.M. 

 

Attest: 
 

 

________________________________   ___________________________________ 

Lisa Jackson      James Marshall, Jr. 

Director      Chairman 

7



File Attachments for Item:

5. Request by Glenn Hulett for a side yard setback variance at 169 N. Steel Bridge Road. Presently zoned

R-2. [Map 110B, Parcel 153, District 3].

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Agenda 

Thursday, December 03, 2020 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

2. Attendance 

3. Rules of Procedures 

Minutes 
4. Approval of Minutes - November 5, 2020 

Requests 
5. Request by Glenn Hulett for a side yard setback variance at 169 N. Steel Bridge Road. Presently zoned R-2. [Map 110B, Parcel 153, District 

3]. The applicant is requesting a 10-foot side yard setback variance, being 10 feet from the left side property line when facing the lake. The 

structure will be 26-ft from the property line on the right side. There is adrainage that runs from the road to lake on the right side of the property, 

which causes the proposed structure to encroach the left setback. This is an extremely long, non-conforming lot, measuring 700 feet long with a 

lot width at building setback of 79 feet. Mr. Hulett would like to build a new two-story home on the lot. The proposed footprint of first floor will 

be 2,100 square feet. Due to the severe drainage issue, the proposed location is the best option for the request. Therefore, this request meets the 

conditions stated in Putnam County, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 66-157(c)(2). 

 

  

20



 

Staff recommendation is for approval of a 10-foot side setback variance, being 10 feet from the left-side property line when facing the lake at 

169 N. Steel Bridge [Map 110B, Parcel 153]. 

 

Proposed Left 
Side Variance 

Nearest Point 
to the Lake 

Lot width at building 
setback approx. 79 feet 

Approx. 93 
feet wide 
near 
lakeside 

Approx. 40 
feet wide 
near front 
property 

Setback from 
front 
property line 
562 feet

21



New Business 
Adjournment 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of Commissioners agendas must file a disclosure of campaign 

contributions with the Planning & Development Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an elected 

official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on December 15, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 

Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, GA  31024. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the meeting, including 

the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-152 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the 

requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding 

the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-

2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

22



File Attachments for Item:

6. Request by Ronald Peterson for a rear yard setback variance at 145 Northshore Drive. Presently 

zoned R-2. [Map 056B, Parcel 097, District 4].

23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Agenda 

Thursday, December 03, 2020 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

2. Attendance 

3. Rules of Procedures 

Minutes 
4. Approval of Minutes - November 5, 2020 

Requests 
6. Request by Ronald Peterson for a rear yard setback variance at 145 Northshore Drive. Presently zoned R-2. [Map 056B, Parcel 097, District 

4]. The applicant is requesting a 48-foot rear yard setback variance, being 52 feet from the nearest point to the lake. He would like to add a 12’x 

20’ (240) sq. ft. bedroom/bathroom extension to the existing home. The home is currently 960 Sq. ft which is nonconforming according to 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances states in Sec. 66-85 (g), of the R-2 zoning district.  The minimum heated requirement is 1,000 heated square 

feet and with the proposed addition, the proposed addition. This extension will not exceed the current home’s setback from the lake. Although, 

there is space located in the front of the home, it is unbuildable due to the location of the septic system. If approved, this addition would bring the 

total square footage of the home to 1,200 sq. ft., bringing the structure up to code. Therefore, this request meets the conditions stated in Putnam 

County, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 66-157(c)(2). 

 

 

 

  

34



 
Staff recommendation is for approval of a 48-foot rear yard setback variance, being 52 feet from the nearest point to the lake at 145 Northshore 

Drive [Map 056B, Parcel 097].  

Existing 960 
sq. ft. Home 

Existing 52 ft setback 
from nearest point to 
the lake 

240 sq. ft. 
addition 

35 ft. right 
side setback 

Lot width at 
building setback 
Approx. 149 ft. 

142 ft. front 
yard setback 

Lot width 
Approx. 90ft 
near front 

100 ft. lakeside 
setback requirement 

10
0 

35



New Business 
Adjournment 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of Commissioners agendas must file a disclosure of campaign 

contributions with the Planning & Development Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an elected 

official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on December 15, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 

Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, GA  31024. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the meeting, including 

the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-152 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the 

requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding 

the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-

2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

36



File Attachments for Item:

7. Request by C. Roy Embry for conditional use at 621 New Phoenix Road. Presently zoned C-1. [Map 

075, Parcel 050, District 2]. *

37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Agenda 

Thursday, December 03, 2020 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

2. Attendance 

3. Rules of Procedures 

Minutes 
4. Approval of Minutes - November 5, 2020 

Requests 
7. Request by C. Roy Embry for conditional use at 621 New Phoenix Road. Presently zoned C-1. [Map 075, Parcel 050, District 2]. * The 

applicant is requesting a conditional use to build a fertilizer storage/blending facility that is not listed in Sec. 66-103. - Uses allowed of C-1 in the 

Putnam County code of ordinances. The proposed structure will measure approximately 4,000 square foot (80x50). The conditional use will be 

consistent with the current use of the property. 

 

 The property is currently surrounded by AG-1 property on three sides with only one C-1 property adject to it. One of the adjacent AG-1 

properties is own by the applicant. The proposed structures will be approximately 200' from the road, with the parking area being 25' from the 

road. The nearest dwelling unit is over 500 feet from the proposed location. Other than during construction the proposed use is not anticipated to 

create any objectionable noise and vibration beyond what would typically be associated with the adjacent AG-1 use or the previous cement 

company that was in operation at this location. The intended use should not have a significant impact on the traffic generated in the area beyond 

that which is associated with an agricultural type business. This use would be allowed in a C-2 or Industrial district; however, the proposed 

location is adjacent to Hwy 44 which is one of the main corridors in Putnam County.  

 

Therefore, staff does not recommend that this property be rezoned to a district which would allow light industrial or outside display or use, 

however, as the subject property has limited road frontage (95') on Hwy 44, the intended facility will front on New Phoenix Road (approximately 

400'), the nature of the adjacent commercial properties and previous use of the parcel, staff recommends a conditional use be granted for a 

fertilizer storage/blending facility. 

 

 

47

https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH66ZO_CODI_S66-103USAL


 

48



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Staff recommendation is for approval of a conditional use for a fertilizer storage/blending facility located on New Phoenix Rd NE [Map 075, 

Parcel 050]. 

Adjacent C-1 
properties owned by 
the applicant 

AG-1 property owned 
by the applicant 

GA HWY 44 

Subject C-1 
Property 

House over 560 ft. 
from subject property 

House over 1200 ft. 
from subject property 

49



New Business 
Adjournment 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of Commissioners agendas must file a disclosure of campaign 

contributions with the Planning & Development Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an elected 

official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on December 15, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 

Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, GA  31024. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the meeting, including 

the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-152 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the 

requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding 

the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-

2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

50



File Attachments for Item:

8. Request by Willie David Copelan to rezone 5.00 acres from AG-2 to C-2 at 931 Pea Ridge Road. [Map 

092, Part of Parcel 017001001, District 2]. *

51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



092
023

092
026

092022

092 027

092 029

09
2

02
90

01

092013001

092
012

092
 01

3

092
 01

4

092 009002

092
 02

1

092 015

092 002

092
 00

7

092
 00

3

09
2 0

21
00

1

092 017

092
 00

9

092008 092 009004

092
040

092
025

Pe
a R

idg
e R

d S
E

Oconee Springs Rd SE

R-1R

AG-1

Middle Georgia Regional Commission
175 Emery Hwy

Suite C
Macon, Georgia 31217

(478) 751-6160
Web:

www.middlegeorgiarc.org

IT GIS Services

DATE: JUNE 2020

MAP 092
PUTNAM COUNTY, GEORGIA

ZONING MAPS

µ
1:4,800SCALE RATIO:MAP SCALE: 1 " = 400 '

70 99 100
14 41 42 69 71 98 101

13 15 40 43 68 72 97 102
12 16 39 44 67 73 96 103 121
11 17 38 45 66 74 95 104 120 122
10 18 37 46 65 75 94 105 119 123
9 19 36 47 64 76 93 106 118 124 130
8 20 35 48 63 77 92 107 117 125 129
7 21 34 49 62 78 91 108 116 126 128
6 22 33 50 61 79 90 109 115 127
5 23 32 51 60 80 89 110 114
4 24 31 52 59 81 88 111
3 25 30 53 58 82 87 112
2 26 29 54 57 83 86 113
1 27 28 55 56 84 85 .

TAX MAP 
GRID GEOGRAPHIC FEATURE LEGEND

Eatonton Limits
County Boundary
Roads
Parcels
Parcel_Hooks

Zoning
Overlay District
 No Code
AG-1
AG-1 CITY

AG-2
C-1
C-1 CITY
C-2

C-2 CITY
I-M
IND-1 CITY
IND-2

IND-2 CITY
MHP
PUBLIC
PUBLIC CITY

R - 1 CITY
R - 2 CITY
R - 3 CITY
R - 4 CITY

R-1
R-1R
R-2
RM-1

RM-2
RM-3
VILLAGE

82



093 058

093 060

093 049

093
050

093
055

093 05
4093 051 093 052001 093 061002

093 059

093
061004

092
017001

002

092 017001 001

093 052

092
017001

Sparta Hwy

Pea Ridge Rd SE

Pea Ridge Ln SE

Sparta Hwy

AG-1

C-1

AG-2

83



84



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Agenda 

Thursday, December 03, 2020 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

2. Attendance 

3. Rules of Procedures 

Minutes 
4. Approval of Minutes - November 5, 2020 

Requests 
8. Request by Willie David Copelan to rezone 5.00 acres from AG-2 to C-2 at 931 Pea Ridge Road. [Map 092, Part of Parcel 017001001, 

District 2]. * The applicant is requesting to rezone 5.00 acres from AG-2 to C-2 to establish a commercial business. However, C-1 zoning is 

more applicable for this proposed location and use. The concept plan shows a convenience store with gas station fuel pumps. This proposed 

commercial business will be located at the corner of Georgia State Route 16 and Pea Ridge Road. The desired use is consistent with the allowed 

uses, as listed in Sec. 66-103. - Uses allowed of the C-1 zoning district. The C-1 use could impact a couple of nearby properties. Still, overall, it 

would not adversely affect the area given that the proposed location is at the corner of a state highway and a main arterial road. Georgia State 

Route 16 is a major thoroughfare through Putnam County, and Pea Ridge Road is an important connector between Georgia State Route 16, U.S. 

Highway 441, and the Lake Oconee area. The property can be used as it is currently zoned; however, it would be more marketable as commercial 

in its given location. Although the Future Land Use Comprehensive Plan is Agriculture in this area, the location of this property makes it prime 

for commercial-1 development. If approved, the proposed development could adversely impact and create congestion for this busy intersection. 

Therefore, staff recommends that the developer installs a deceleration lane on Pea Ridge Road. Additional right-of-way to accommodate the 

deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be dedicated by the developer to the county. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

85



 

86



 

 

The staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 5.00 acres at 931 Pea Ridge Road [Map 092, Parcel 017001001, District 2] from AG-2 to C-1 

with the following conditions:  

(1) The developer shall construct a deceleration lane in accordance with the Georgia Department of Transportation Regulations for 

Driveway & Encroachment Control to service the entrance on Pea Ridge Road of the development.   

(2) Additional right-of-way to accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be dedicated by the developer to the county. 

House 

House House 

Request by Danny Copelan at 931 Pea Ridge Road from AG-2 to C-1 

87



New Business 
Adjournment 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of Commissioners agendas must file a disclosure of campaign 

contributions with the Planning & Development Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an elected 

official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on December 15, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 

Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, GA  31024. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the meeting, including 

the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-152 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the 

requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding 

the accessibility of the meeting, or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-

2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

88



File Attachments for Item:

9. Request by Zeke Long, agent for Tyler Land Holdings, LLC to rezone 2.76 acres from C-1 to C-2 on 

Greensboro Road. [Map 103A, Part of Parcel 062, District 3]. *

89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Agenda 

Thursday, December 03, 2020 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

2. Attendance 

3. Rules of Procedures 

Minutes 
4. Approval of Minutes - November 5, 2020 

Requests 
9. Request by Zeke Long, agent for Tyler Land Holdings, LLC to rezone 2.76 acres from C-1 to C-2 on Greensboro Road. [Map 103A, Part of 

Parcel 062, District 3]. * The applicant is requesting to rezone 2.76 acres from C-1 to C-2. He plans on to build a boat store and service center on 

the property. The proposed use is consistent with the allowed uses, as listed in section Sec. 66-106. - Uses allowed of C-2 zoning district which 

allows outside display and uses that are similar in comparison to light industrial.  The proposed property is located on Lake Oconee Parkway 

which is a main corridor leading from the lake through Putnam County. It is adjacent to all C-1 properties which has historically been the 

preferred zoning district by the county along this corridor except for a few grandfathered C-2 parcels. More recently, the ordinance has been 

revised to exclude outside display in C-1 which requires any new establishments be operated wholly within permanently enclosed buildings as 

stated in Sec. 66-103 Uses Allowed.    

. 

 

 

 

109

https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH66ZO_CODI_S66-106USAL
https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH66ZO_CODI_S66-103USAL


  

110



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Staff recommendation is for denial to rezone 2.76 acres on Greensboro Road [Map 103A, Part of Parcel 062] from C-1 to C-2. 

 

Subject C-1 
Property 

GA HWY 44 

Single Family 
Residential 

Neighborhood 

111



New Business 
Adjournment 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of Commissioners agendas must file a disclosure of campaign 

contributions with the Planning & Development Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an elected 

official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on December 15, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 

Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, GA  31024. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the meeting, including 

the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-152 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the 

requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding 

the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-

2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

112


	Top
	Item #4.	120320 P&Z Minutes
	11-5-20 Minutes Revisions

	Item #5.	120320 P&Z Glenn Hulett
	12-3-20 MAP
	Hulett Variance
	110B153LV
	110B153ZOOM
	Future Land Use 110B153
	Hulett SR

	Item #6.	120320 P&Z Ronald Peterson
	12-3-20 MAP
	Peterson Variance
	056B097LV
	056B097ZOOM
	Future Land Use 056B097
	Peterson SR

	Item #7.	120320 P&Z C Roy Embry
	12-3-20 MAP
	Embry CondUse
	075050LV
	075050ZOOM
	Future Land Use 075050
	Embry SR

	Item #8.	120320 P&Z Danny Copelan
	12-3-20 MAP
	CoplanRezoning
	Letters for 931 Pea Ridge Road
	092017001001LV
	092017001001ZOOM
	931 Pea Ridge Future Land Use Map
	Copelan SR

	Item #9.	120320 P&Z  Zeke Long, agent for Tyler Land Holdings, LLC
	12-3-20 MAP
	TylerRezoning
	103A062LV
	103A062ZOOM
	Future Land Use 103A062
	Tyler Holdings LLC

	Bottom

